
SEELEY LAKE MISSOUI.A COUNTY SEWER DISTRICT
Public Hearing Held at the Community Hall

March 29,2011

Attendance:
Glen Modn President PRESENT
Bob Skiles Director PRESENT
Scott Smith Vice-President PRESENT
Mike Lindemer Director PRESENT
Mike Bolz Director PRESENT
Sign In Sheet - Appendix A

Felicity Derry Secretary PRESENT

OPENING:
The meeting was called to order at 7:20pm by Ptesident, Glen Morin at The Community Hall, located
on Highway 83 N.

Glen Modn commented that Randy Gotdon would not be with the District after March 37,201.7.
Scott Smith added that he had tesigned. Glen Morin opened the floot to the public and reminded
them to limit their comments to 3 minutes.

Joe Mords requested that the Boatd give the information on the assessment.

Glen Morin said that aftet looking at the cost per customer fot the bond election the Board felt that it
was not feasible; howevet the Board would vote on that tonight. The Boatd would not be going
forward with the Intetcap loan. That also would be voted on tonight. Scott Smith explained that
Missoula County had offered to loan the District $110,000 for matching grant funds. This money
would be repaid once the ptoject was completed. The Board would be meeting with Missoula County
to discuss this further.

Public: Questioned that the Boatd would vote against the two assessments.

Glen Morin replied that he anticipated that the Board would not vote for the Intercap loan. In the
last two weeks Missoula County had offered to loan $110,000 at no interest. The loan would not
have to be paid back until there was a functioning se\rer. The Board would set up a meeting with
Missoula County to find out more information.

Loten Rose, Pyramid noted that the hearing tonight would only be on the assessment for operations.
How did the Board plan to do their due diligence, figute out where to go from here and how to get
there? Glen Morin replied that the hearing would be for the operational assessment. The Board
was backing up, teviewing everything and asking for mote help and input. Missoula County could
help the Boatd. Curently the opetational assessment would continue. The $110,000 loan would
enable Gteat West Engineering to complete the system design and discharge permit. At that point
the project would be shovel-ready. This would also allow additional time to find more funding.

i)3 i::i) .i :.i.tj1.1
licclr:r' J.akc Sr:x'i:r I)istrici Pul.,lic l:lta*xg



Scott Smith said that if the system design was complete the project would be shovel-ready and the
District could apply for gtants. If the ptoject cost $15 million, then the Board would find out how
much Federal money the District could get, then the Bond election would occur based on that. The
Intercap loan was to be used fot matching funds to move the project to be shovei-teady. The
Intercap loan may not be needed because Missoula County may potentially loan the District

$1 1 0,000 matching funds.

Loren Rose asked if Missoula County would assist in doing some of the wotk. Scott Smith said that
Missoula County had made an offet to manage the project at a cost of $1 pet yeat. Missoula County
wanted to be involved. The Sewer Disttict was it's own entity and Missoula County follows the
Board's direction. Glen Morin added that Missoula County wanted to partner up with the District.
Loren Rose asked if their official name was Seeley Lake Missoula County Sewer District and had the
County not had ownership up until this point. Scott Smith said that Missoula County did not have
ownemhip of the District; they were their own entity. Vince Chappell added that it was by name
only, as it was fot the Seeley Lake Missoula County Water District.

Caroline Jenkins, Pathfinder said at the last meeting some ongoing projects were outlined that would
be completed July/August 2072. Those projects were ground water discharge permit, US Fotest
Service land acquisition, environmental analysis & report and Phase I design. Were those ptojects
still ongoing zftet these with new developments? Glen Morin replied that they were ongotng.

Public: The thing that bothered him was the claim that the lake was polluted. The lake was lined
completely with six inches of bentonite. There was no way that the lake could be polluted unless the
waste was actua\ dumped in to the lake. Glen Modn said that the tests showed there was some
human waste in lake. Scott Smith said that it was not iust the lake but the ground water also. Bob
Skiles said that Missoula County did a study in the town of Seeley Lake in 7992 to study nitrate
levels. It showed an increased level of nitrates in the monitoring wells. The District had an ongoing
monitoring program fot both ground watet and lake water. Pat of the concentration of the town's
ground water flow goes to the river and part to the lake. If you do not think there is pollution in the
lake you need to look at the studies and draw yorr own conclusion. We are not here to debate if we
need a sewer system. We are here to debate how to pay for the sewer system that we need.

Joe Mottis said eight yeafs ago Montana State University and the Health Department came out
independendy to check Seeley Lake. Both found the lake at all depths to be clear. The only place to
worry about was on the flats.

Dave Guelff noted that at the last meeting the engineer had estimated the cost of a hook-up from
the house to the sewer main to be between $200-$1,000. He thought that was way low, It would be
a good idea for a contfactor to come in and give an actual estimate of the cost. Glen Morin said that
Gary Lewis had given the District a cost and that was the source of the esdmate of $200-$2,000.
Vince Chappeli added that Gary Lewis did not usually include the cost of landscapirg ir the estimate.

Mike Boltz said that in his experience $200 was a really low estimate. The septic tank had to be
pumped then crushed and the lines dug in. In his opinion the starting cost would be $1,200.
Caroline Jenkins asked if there were grants available that would supplement the cost to the
homeowner. Glen Morin said that there were grants thtough Rutal Development that were
dependent upon the income survey being completed. Scott Smith added that they were based on

()i 1 :') !::i111
licclu, i.ak* Si:r.,'r.r l)istrici. PLiirli.c I :lcalin11



income. The new manager would be tasked to research obtaining grants to assist people pay for the
hook-ups. Glen Morin added that because the income srrveys wete not completed the District was
not eligible fot those gtants. The District could try to complete the income survey zga:n.

Diane Btaach asked what percentage of people responded to the income survey. The Board replied
that each phase varied but it was lower than 30o/o. Scott Smith said that if the income survey had
been completed and the income would have been below approximately $23,000 the District would
have been eligible to apply for grants of up to 75oh of the total cost of the project.

Caroline Jenkins, Pathfinder noted that the engineer had indicated that there was a sliding scale
where the higher the average income the lower the percentage of grant money that could be applied
fot. The highest petcentage of grant money that could be applied forwasT5o/o.

Joe Motris asked why did the sewer cost so much. Glen Morin replied that there were at least one
hundred lots in town that could not be used because the Missoula County Health Department
would not give them septic approval. The Disttict had been testing the gtound water for almost ten
years and there was a steady inctease in gtound water contamination. Scott Smith said that with the
contamination levels in the ground water today in certain locations in the town of Seeley Lake tf a
septic system were to fail Missoula County could not issue a permit for a new septic system and the
County would condernn the Iot.

Diane Bnach asked what brought about the change in charging the assessment from per lot to
square footage. Glen Morin replied that the County Attorney told the District that the per lot
charge was not a legal. They gave the District three different options. The Board reviewed them
and this method seemed to be the easiest and most equitable to the community. Diane Braach
asked what the other options where. Bob Skiles replied that one was to assess the land and
improvements (the total tax bill) and p^y ^ percentage of that. Another was you would pay what
percentage of land you owned within in the Disuict.

Diane Bnach asked how the Board could justift using square footage. Bob Skiles replied that they
were using land value and square footage combined. Diane Bnach asked why it was not how many
bathrooms. Bob Skiles teplied that it had nothing to do with the house, how many tr,mes you
flushed the toilet ot what your water bill was. It was not based on the value of improvements on the
property. It was only the square footage of the property and land value. Diane Braach asked again
what the other options u/ere and how the Board justifred the square footage. Glen Morin said that
the Board would check in to that.

AI Castonguay asked the difference between thefi72 per lot and the new way using square footage.
His brother-in-law's bill went from $72 to $42. Bob Skiles replied that the old way of billing took
the amount of the operating budget and divided by the number of lots in the District. People did
not like that method and complained. The new way used half of the value of the property and half
of the square footage.

Al Castonguay noted at$72 pet lot the total amount billed was $40,000, with the new method what
is the total amount billed. Bob Skiles replied that the total billed fot the assessment was the same,
the only thing that had changed vrith the methodology.

{)J i :..i i:.ii1 1

5+r:lcr: i.akt Strvr:r l)rstrici PLrl.,lic I {c*r'ir1r



Si Baker noted that each property in the District would tap the sewer. Why not assess by the sewet
tap? Scott Smith said that he owned approximately 30 acres. Hypotheticah if the sewer system u/as
built he could subdivide the land, potentially he would have 30 lots. Should he pay mote? Al
Castonguay noted if that wete the case he would be selling the lots and the new owners would pay it.
Scott Smith said if that wete so it would lessen the cost to the others in the District.

Catoline Jenkins, Pathfinder questioned if this assessment was for administrative costs for running
the District. When the sewer was built would the monthly fee be based on usage. Mike Boltz said
that there would still be a nominal adminisftative fee and usage. Caroline Jenkins asked if usage
would be used to calculate the fee. The Board agreed it would once there was a sewer. Mike Boltz
noted that when talking to Missoula County the assessment would remain the same to pay for day-
to-day operations.

Al Castonguay asked how many protests were teceived and how would they be handled. Glen
Morin said that there wete 5 protests, which were apploximately 23.7oh of the land mass and 3.620/o
of the value. Glen Morin said that not enough protests had been received to make a difference.

Loren Rose, Pyramid Mountain Lumber said that protests had to be more than 3.670 because
Pyramid was 1 1 .870. After futth er clariftcatton it was noted that 3 .60/o was of the land value and not
of the total assessment, for which Pyramid was 11.804.

Hatold Sheets requested cladfication on Missoula County loaning the District the money for the
assessment and would it be cheaper. Glen Morin said that Missoula County had offered to loan the
Disttict the $110,000 at no interest. This would be instead of borrowing the $110,000 from Intercap.
The Board would be meeting with Missoula County to get more details. Scott Smith added that the
Board still had to vote on it, but it was the Board's belief that the $110,000 loan assessment would
not be completed.

Hatold Sheets asked how that would affect the amount of money being charged if only half of it
needed to be paid back. Glen Motin noted that the assessment that was charged each year for the
opetation of the District would still go forward, but the assessment fot the Intetcap loan ($110,000)
would not be charged. Bob Skiles added that aftet the sewet was built Missoula County would want
their money back. He had calculated that if everybody in the District paid $180 it would get

$470,000 grant to work on securing property and the design, etc.

Hatold Sheets asked if everybody paid $180 would the other assessments go away. Bob Skiles
replied that they would not have to pay the assessment for the $110,000.

Harold Sheets questioned that the US Forest Service would lease ptopetty for the treatment plant
and not sell it. Glen Morin replied that the US Forest Serv-ice said that the District could buy the
propefty. The District would be using the Town Site Act.

Diane Braach asked if $110,000 matching funds would be repaid over 15 years. If the bond election
in June passed the bond would then be paid in firll at that time? Scott Smith said that the bond
election was to build the system. Once the bond was funded it would pay off $110,000 loan. The
Board believed that the vote would not go ahead, but the Board still had to vote on it.

{)3 t::., i::.t11
Scr:i+' i.akc Scr.,,cr I)istrici PLil.dtc I:lca*ng

4



Hatold Sheets questioned if it would be at least two years before the public could vote on it. Glen
Morin said that hopefully by July/August 2072 the design should be done. Then the District would
have to obtain a grcat deal of money. Scott Smith added that then the District could apply for
Federal grants.

Bob Skiles said that the Disttict would lose a grant of $750,000 by not having a public vote. The
District would apply for it agatn. The Board had not voted on Missoula County's offer to loan the
Disuict $110,000. That would be discussed at the next meeting at the Barn, to which everybody was
welcome and encouraged to attend. He was a litde skeptical about Missoula County giving the
District free money. The Board wanted to protect the lake, the ground water and the rivet. Before
a couple of months ago the Board did not have a cost. They still did not teally because the design
was not complete. They were stopping because now the Board has an idea of how much it would
cost.

Al Castonguay asked if their figure would add to the $300 assessment on his tax statement. Glen
Morin replied that it would not. If the assessment did not pass what would happen then? Glen
Morin said that would be his cost unless the Board looked at a different way of charging the
assessment.

Joan Baket asked if the Disttict would not vote in June. If not when would thete be a vote. Glen
Morin said that there would not be a vote; because the funding was not in place. When the Disttict
obtained $7-$15 million to make the cost to the people reasonable, then it would go to a vote. Joan
Baker said that in the meantime she would pay $314 per year in her operational assessment. Scott
Smith said that their goal was to get it built. Bob Skiles said that the money taised by the assessment
allowed the District to operate. There was a public infotmational meeting March 22, 201,1, that
explained all of the money spent and the work that had been done to date.

Lauri Darrow asked if the financial information was online. Bob Skiles said that it was not online but
the District's books were open for review. Scott Smith said that Lauri Darrow had to make a formal
request at the next Board meeting, and they would be ptovided.

Loren Rose noted that Scott said the designed system cost approximately $15 million. Was that still
the system that was being contemplated? Befote that went to a vote would thete be some level of
grant funding obtained to offset the cost and make it affordable? The Board agreed that was their
main goal. Scott Smith said that the Board could not butden the community with that cost. That
was why the vote was put on hold. Loren Rose asked if there was a number that the Board had in
mind. Scott Smith said that their goal was way below $100. Glen Morin added that $20 was not
enough and $100 too much. Mike Lindemer said that the reason the project was to be built in
phases was because the District could get more grant money. With each phase the grants could be
reapplied for. The Board would not push the button until it was affordable. Scott Smith added that
the Board had to convince the public that it was affordable. It was the Boatd's fiduciary
responsibility to lower the cost as much as possible. That was why they were considering Missoula
County's options to assist the District.

Mike Richards questioned that the assessment would st^y ̂ t the same amount. The budget would
be reduced if the District did not have to pay fot a manager. Scott Smith said that the Board might
opt to hire a m^n^get if it were in the best interest of the District. If the Boatd accepts Missoula

ii..\ | :.i) i :.i)1 1

Strlcr' i .*kr. Scrvrr: I)isl rici liLrl.rlic I Tcat*ry1



County's proposal the budget n 2012 could go down. If the Boatd could agree to the terms and get
^ cotrtr^ct stating that, then the assessment would go down.

Harold Sheets questioned if the District teceived the grant money for Phase I and it was built; then
what happened if the financing was not in place fot Phase II? Glen Modn said that there might be a
yeat missed, but each phase would go to a vote. Harold Sheets questioned if Phase I went ahead
would everybody in the District pay f.ot Phase I. Glen Modn said that they would pay capital cost.
That was why Phase I cost so much, because everything was built in Phase I making the subsequent
phases easy to add on to. Once the first phase was built and was running it would be easier to get
gfant money.

Dave Whitesitt said that the cufient Operation & Maintenance (O&Nf) estimate for Phase I was

$189,000. The 3/20/08 funding strategy called for. 165 hook-ups in Phase I. That would be $95.45
per hook-up, plus the cost of the hook-up, plus the capital cost. There were vacant houses in the
arca that would not hook-up anytime soon. Many of the lots had Missoula County approved septic
systems, which would not have to hook-up until the septic failed ot the property was sold. It would
be mote accrrate to estimate 100 hook-ups in Phase I. This would mean that O&M cost per month
would be $157.50 pet lot. We could not afford a sewer if there were enough grants to cover the
capital costs for Phase I. There were two affotdable options. Get enough grants to build the system
at one time ot find aJower cost alternative. Please do not put a grant-matching assessment on our
tax bills at this time. He said that he appreciated that the Board would not be putting that on the tax
bill at this time. Tryirg to operate on Phase I would be like trying to operate a c t on one cylinder.
It could not be done.

Lauri Darrow asked in light of the current economy how did the Board feel about grant money.
Ptogtams were being cut across the board. Did the Board have some concern about that? She
operates a business on Highway 83 and there was no business. How did the Board feel about going
forward now befote everything was figuted out in the entire country? Glen Morin said that they all
ask that question but they had to go forward. Lauri Darrow said that this was a huge undetaking
could we affotd it? Glen Morin teplied that the Boatd wanted to go forward, but they would not do
it if it were not affordable. He heard in a recent meeting that Montana had been given $180 million
to do with what they want to. There is money out thete. We have to go forward. The Board
needed to win back the public's trust that this project would not be done until we could afford it.
He would like to get the assessment lowet. Missoula County Attomey said that it was the best
method for the assessment.

Lauri Darrow said that someday the community did need a sewer, but she wondered if the time was
right now, or if tomorrow was even the time. Bob Skiles said that we could not wait anotlet
nineteen years. Scott Smith said that the Board did not want to charge an assessment fot twenty
years without getting something done.

Mike Richards thanked the Board for looking in to the process and the method of charging the
assessment. He hoped that they would find a better way of charging it than the current method.

Diane Braach questioned Dave Whitesitt's statement of many vacant houses in the arca that would
not hook-up until the septic system failed or the property was sold. The Board said that you had to

i i i  i : ()  i . . i i11

ic*]* l.:rkt S*x,rrr 1.)isfrir:i. Ilublic I lcat'inr1



hook-up. Glen Morin clarified that if the main line passed your propelty you had to hook-up. The
vacant lots would be assessed capital cost only.

Hatold Sheets said at a ptevious meeting many people that did not live in the District stood up
wanting to "save the valley". One petson stood up and said he would be willing to pay his fair share.
He ptobably would not have said that if he knew how much it was. He was concerned that these
people had too much influence on the Board. Scott Smith said that Missoula County thinks we need
a sewer. Bob Skiles questioned that an altetnative funding mechanism for the sewer could be the
resort tax. It could help pay the O&M cost. People should think about 3oh tax on the commerce of
the town. Caroiine Jenkins noted that it would not come out of the business ov/ners' pocket. It
would be the people purchasing whatever was taxed that would pay.

Eric Chigbrow said that he had a surnmer place and used it for twelve weekends or less ^ yeaL
'$fould the $1,200 to hook-up to the system be prorated based on usage. Or was the hook-up
charge a flit r.ate? Glen Morin said that it would depend what the footage from the house to the
main line would be. Bob Skiles said that he thought that the Board could charge a rate dtffereflt on
season pfopefty.

Eric Chigbrow said that he supported the sewer, but was the Board taking the seasonal people into
considetation. Glen Morin said that they had not got that far yet.

Vince Chappell said that would be covered once the system was operating and the policy manual
was completed. At that point the Board could explore every avenue for rate structures. Scott Smith
added that Randy Gotdon statted the policy manual. That project would have to be completed.

Doug Hadnot questioned the assessment method. He was opposed to the method that was chosen
because it was blatandy unfair to those that had bigger propetties. The benefit from the sewer that
he received was no different than that of a petson who owned a smaller lot. He requested that the
Board investigate the possibility of charging the assessment the old way. Scott Smith said that there
were twice as many people that were unhappy with the per lot fee.

Doug Hadnot said that he had been involved with the Sewer District for a long time. Way back
there was the question of public support, could the community afford it and was it a viable option.
Every year the residents of the Sewer District were told they would get to vote on it. He asked the
same question of the Missoula County Commissioners who said he would get to vote on it in the
spring of 201,1,. Now the vote had been put off for two more years. He would advocate getting all
the infotmation about cost to build a public sewer system to the homeowners and have the
community vote to see if it is worth going forwatd from this point. Everything was pushed off each
year and curtently there seemed to be no end point. He asked the Board to have a public
referendum to see if the sewet is viable. He believed that the Sewet Disuict was not big enough. It
was not teasonable to ask a small number of people to pay to make the water in the lake clean for
everybody in Montana to use. The District needed to be expanded dramatically.

GIen Morin asked the Boatd to vote on the bond election for $15 million for construction of the
sewer. No motion was made and the bond election was dropped.

i)3 I ?.' ,'?"C1.1.
Scclrl j.aki, Srr."'c:r l)istrici PLrl.,lL I lcaring



Glen Morin asked the Boatd to vote on the Intercap loan of $110,000 to be used as matching funds
for the WRDA gr^fll Mike Lindemer requested tabliflg this based upon ne\r/ information provided
by Missoula County. The Board agreed.

Glen Morin asked the Board to vote whether to continue with the operational assessment using the
same methodology. The Board discussed this matter.

Scott Smith noted that he was not on the Board ^ yer ago, and asked the public if they all attended
the operational assessment hearing a yeat ago. The County Commissioner had run the meetings
previously but the Board discovered that they could run the meeting and not the Commissionets.

Diane Braach said that there was a packed meeting in the Elementary School seven or eight years
^go. The public was asked if they were in favor ot against. They wete all against. The
Commissioners passed the assessment. Bob Skiles said the people were asked if they were in favor
of suppotting the Sewet Board with funds. Diane Bnach disagreed and was concerned that nobody
listened to the people, so why should they attend meetings?

Mike Richards questioned if it would be prudent to hold on the operational assessmeflt until the
Board had researched how this would be handled. The Board replied that they could not wait it had
to be sent to the attorneys by Thursday (two days). Glen Morin said that the assessment should go
forward but suggested looking at some other methods. If the assessment could be charged the old
way per lot would people support it? Numerous people said that they would. The Board discussed
this further.

Al Castonguay asked if Scott Smith was assessed the same way as everybody else. Scott Smith
replied that he was and he paid apptoximately $1,700 pet year. Al Castonguay then suggested that
he did that so he could get the seu/er taps and subdivide the ptopety. Scott Smith said that was not
his goal, he paid it because he felt that as a member of the community it was his responsibility to pay
his fair share.

Glen Morin suggested tabling this matter and talking to the attorneys. Othet Board members said
that it had to be voted on tonight and could not wait because the assessment had to be processed.
Glen Morin added that if it wete voted on it would be stuck at this rate. Bob Skiies said that there
wete only a handful of protests. Loren Rose questioned that the protests were for the Intetcap loan
and thetefote had no beadng on the operational assessment. Could the Boatd pass the operational
assessment, the amount, while grvlng the Board a couple of days to see if there was another method
to charge the assessment? Dorsey & Whitney said that the pet lot method was a legal way to charge
the assessment. Scott Smith said that the County Attorney's office told them that they could not use
the per lot method anymore. Glen Modn suggested tabling it. Scott Smith said that the dollar
amount had to be voted on tonight. The other problem was that the people who object to the per
lot method had not had a chance for public comment.

Doug Hadnot said he had spoken with Dori Brownlow and Jean Curtiss about the time ftame for
the vote. The response was the Board had lots of time; yet it was the Board's understanding that it
had to be given to Dorsey & Whitney in two days. Bob Skiles said that the Commissioners had little
to do with the Sewer Board so he would not expect them to have the coffect information.

t)3 i::., i::.{}1 1
Sccl.:r Laki, $rrvi:r l)istrir:i lublir: l:ii:ar-ing



Dianne Bnach asked how long the Board needed to come up with the other options. Glen Morin
replied maybe until tomorrow.

Caroline Jenkins, Pathfinder questioned if the assessing method was changed that there should be
public comment. The meeting notice specified the calculation method for the assessment. If the
calculation method was changed the public needed to be allowed time to make public comment or
protest. Loren Rose said that in an email from Dorsey & tJi/hitney he thought it said that the
meeting was only necessary for the Intercap loan. The Board discussed this further.

Bob Skiles moved to accept the operational assessment, Scott Smith seconded. The motion passed
unadmously.

NEXT REGUI.AR MEETING: Scheduled for April 27,201.7

The meeting was adjourned by Glen Morin at 8:27pmADJOURMENT:

Attest:

Glen Morin. President

Felicity Derry, Secretary

ii:, i:., i:1.ii11
Scticr' l.akt Srrvcr I)istrir:i Pul.,lier I lcartrl.r:,



AP€r ru,uy
_u.{' t f i

A

SEELEY LAKE - MISSOULA COLINTY SEWER DISTRICT
Public Hearing, Communify Hall

March 29,2011

ADDRESS/EMAIL PHONE #
,a '? /' .--

' - L ' '  )  k ' \

E t4 r'*j f,o/lt,ttc, ( zz-2dte

c ./seOtv o -7

qJn ay' e lialtrar,lrzot

,Yer  ve  )  y  0 .  B .35

-D$v tD 6 zz  26=Btt* 32 z- .'ftL*'/

FoBav33d S,L .  , / i , / i

t930 sL

/t -/ ' ,) z I

7/d 3'7*/ {l.s /tt t^y"td{ 7f- Teas


